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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT

The trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s report of the
charitable company for the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the purposes
of both a trustees’ report, and a directors’ report under company law.

with effect from 27 April 2021, the name of the Academy Trust was changed from The Boston Witham
Academies Federation to Voyage Education Partnership.

During the year the Academy Trust operated eight Academies in Lincolnshire, one secondary and seven primary
Academies. The Academy Trust has a combined pupil capacity of 3,645 and had a roll of 3,415 in the school
census in October 2020.

Academy Capacity On roll
Carlton Road Academy 420 401
Fishtoft Academy 70 46
Gosberton Academy 140 131
Haven High Academy 1,275 1,254
Park Academy 420 333
Bosion Pioneers Free School 420 401
Staniland Academy 630 569
Wygate Park Academy 270 240

Structure, Governance and Management
Constitution
The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company’s

memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust.

The Trustees are also the Directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law. The charitable
company is known as Voyage Education Partnership, following a name change on 27 April 2021,

Details of the Trustees who served throughout the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Details
on page 2.

Members’ Lighility

Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable Company in
the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within cne year after they cease to be a member,
such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased
to be a member.

Trustees’ indemnities

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy trust business,
and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees’ and officers’ indemnity element
from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT {continued}

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

The Articles outline the different types of Trustee, each category has slightly differing election processes, as
outlined below:

- Up to 8 Trustees, appointed under Articles 50 by the members.

- There shall be a minimum of 2 Parent Trustees elected or appointed under Articles 53-56 in the event
that no Local Governing Bodies are established under Article 100a or if no provision is made for at least
2 Parent Local Governors on each established Local Governing Body pursuant to Article 101A.

- The Trustees may appoint any Co-opted Trustees.

- The Chief Executive Officer, if they agree to act.

- The Secretary of State may appoint such Additional Trustees as he thinks fit.

- Forso long as the Academy Trust occupies all or part of the Former St Bede’s Site, the Diocesan Bishop
shall be entitled to appoint one Trustee and by like notice remove and/ or replace any such appointee.

The term of office for any Trustee shall be 4 years, save that this time limit shall not apply to the Chief Executive

Officer. Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of Trustee, any Trustee may be re-appointed or re-
elected.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the induction and Training of Trustees.

There is no formal agreed induction programme for newly appointed Trustees. At present the Chief Executive
Officer and Chair spend time with new Trustees in order to inform them fully of the workings of the Trust and
their responsibilities.

The training and induction provided for new Trustees will depend on their existing experience. Where necessary,
induction will provide training on charity and educational legal and financial matters. All new Trustees are given
the opportunity to tour each of the academys’ and the chance to meet with staff and students.

All Trustees are provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and aother
documents that they will need to undertake their role as a Trustee. As there are normally few new Trustees a

year, induction tends to be done informally and is tailored specifically to the individual.

Organisgtional Structure

During the year the Board of Trustees of the Trust devolved the day-to-day running of each academy school to
the Local Governing Bodies, who have responsibility to monitor pupil and student outcomes, the guality of the
curriculum, safeguarding, attendance and the setting of policies which are pertinent to each individual
academy. Following consultation during the academic year, the Trust changed to a new governance structure
from 1 September 2021 and Local Governing Bodies were replaced with Academy Councils.

The Board of Trustees are responsible for setting Trust wide policies, adopting the Trust Strategic Plan and
budget, monitoring performance against these plans and making major decisions about the direction of the
Trust, including the curriculum, the achievement and welfare of its pupils, students and staff.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)

Other sub-committees of the Trust include:

e  Finance and Audit

e Curriculum and Standards
e  Estates

* People

The terms of reference and the frequency of meetings are reviewed throughout the year. Each sub-committee
has its own terms of reference, detailing the delegated powers.

Within each academy, the Head of Academy is supported by a senior leadership team. The Trust Central
Education Team which consists of a Data and Assessment Lead, Early Years Lead, Professional Learning Lead,
Teaching and Learning improvement Advisor and an Inclusion Lead Advisor provide support for each academy
as per the needs of the academy. The support provided by central Education team is co-ordinated and led by
the Chief Education Officer.

All primary academies utilise the inclusion services team, which provides support for SEND, safeguarding and
attendance.

All academies were supported by Connect TSA, who provide a wide range of CPD activities.

Arrgngements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Trustees are responsible for setting pay and remuneration of the executive team. Each position has a scale
attached to the post, with any variations needing to be approved by the Trustees or relevant subcommittee.
During the academic year key management personnel are appraised by the Chief Executive Officer or Chief
Education Officer based on the targets set during the previous academic year. Following the appraisal, the Chief
Executive Officer made recommendations to the People committee for consideration. The Chief Executive
Officer’'s appraisal is performed by 3 Trustees and receives advice from an independent education advisor if
considered necessary.

Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union | Full-time equivalent employee number
officials during the relevant period
4 4

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of employees
0% 4
1% - 50% 0
51% - 99% 0
100% 0
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSH!P
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued}

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time
Total cost of facility time £0
Total pay bill £12,103,000
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time | n/a

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a | n/fa
percentage of total paid facility time hours

Connected Organisations, including Related Party Relationships

Connect Teaching School continued to be a partner in the sector led system, supporting and leading aspects of
school improvement across the county. Due to the restrictions of the COVID19 pandemic, face-to-face training
and support was not possible but continued remotely. Remote support and training was particulariy centred
within the Recover Lincolnshire strategy and the Earty Adopter Framework within Early Years and successful
initiatives included the delivery of Maobilise Maths within the Recover Lincolnshire work and continued SLE
support win EY, Maths and transition form Y6-7.

Spring term 2021 saw the national announcement of the dissolution of the Teaching Schools and the
introduction of the Teaching School Hubs. Voyage Education Partnership was identified as a delivery partner
for the Teaching School Hub L.E.A.D and partnership work and negotiation was undertaken to ensure a smooth
start for delivery of ITT and Appropriate Body work within the ECT framework, by Voyage to start in September
2021, following the closedown of Connect Teaching School.

The Trust continues to work in partnership with the Bell Foundation.

Engagement with employees

The Academy Trust’s senior leadership team is commitied to provide employees with information on matters of
concern to them. The team meet on a monthly basis, enabling the Executive to share information and consult
with academy leaders on the direction and performance of the Trust. In turn academy leaders, through their
programme of staff meetings and briefings, share information and consult with their staff appropriately. Where
significant changes are being considered, Trust wide consultations, managed centrally, especially where
decisions are likely to affect employees interests are performed. Due to restrictions adopted during the
Coronavirus pandemic a significant amount of engagement with staff was conducted via digital means rather
than face-to-face.

The policy of the Academy Trust is to support recruitment and retention of students and employees with

disabilities. The Academy Trust does this by adapting the physical environment, by making resources available
and through training and career development.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)

Enqagement with suppliers, customers and others in o business relationship with the trust

Delivering our aims and objectives requires strong mutually beneficial reiationships with suppliers, customers
and other stakeholders to be formed. In developing these relationships, the Academy Trust focuses on the 4
core aims and how the relationship is developed te help achieve these aims.

The trustees receive information from the executive throughout the year on a variety of topics, that indicate
how stakeholders have been engaged. Examples include, minutes of local governing body meetings, employee
consultations results, project appraisals and prompt payment data reporting.

Objectives and Activities

Objects and Aims

The Articles outline the Company’s objectives:

+ To advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice
to the generality of the foregoing by estabiishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing
the Academies by offering a broad and balanced curriculum; and

¢ To promote for the benefit of the inhabitants of Boston and the surrounding area the provision of
facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation of individuals who have need for such facilities
by reascn of their youth, age, infirmity or disablement, financial hardship or social and economic
circumstances or for the public at large in the interests of social weifare and with the object of improving
the condition of life of the said inhabitants.

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

Our Aim; To create centres of excellence within, and for, the communities we serve which raise the aspirations
and achievements of all.

Voyage Education Partnership is a charitable multi academy trust working in Lincolnshire to educate more that
3,500 learners from the ages of 3-16. We currently have 8 academies in our family, and we work in a small
geographical area around Boston and Spalding with each academy no more than 30 minutes from each other.
This is essential to how our MAT operates and enables us to be able to give immediate support when needed
and for our academies to collaborate and work closely together.

Voyage is an inclusive and learner centred multi academy trust which values and promotes excellence in
learning. Our commitment as a MAT is to educate, empower and champion all learners. We work closely with
the families and communities we serve to ensure that all young people meet their full potential. We are
exceptionally proud that learners in our MAT speak 32 different fanguages and that 50% of our young people
are bilingual, multilingual or use English as an additional language.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (centinued)

Six of our academies have been graded Good or Outstanding by Ofsted and the remaining two academies are
confident that they will be graded Good at thelr next inspection. Academic outcomes across the MAT have
improved over time in all academies. We are proud of how well our academies responded to the Covid 19
national pandemic and how all are academies went above and beyond to support the learning and the well
being needs of our pupils and families. We continue to prioritise our post Covid recovery and reconnection
plans.

Vovyage Education Partnership has a clear education strategy. Our MAT has prioritised the formation of a
Central Education Team who provide our academies with support and expertise in Teaching and Learning,
Professional Learning, Inclusion, Early Years and Data/Assessment. Centralised support and guidance for
Safeguarding, Attendance and SEND supports and compliments our education offer.

At Voyage we also have a well-developed Central Team who oversee and offer technical expertise and
leadership in many operational areas including Finance, HR, IT, Estates, Health and Safety, Catering and
Marketing and Communication. Having these professional services provided centralily enables our
Headteachers to focus on leading learning in their own academies knowing they can rely on the partnership
with the operational managers to help them achieve their individual strategic aims.

At Voyage Education Partnership we are proud to work with a wide variety of schools, academies, MATs and
strategic partner organisations. Qur strategic aim for trust growth is to improve the lives and life chances of
maore young people. For many years we have been proud to have the Connect Teaching School as part of our
Trust and this has given us the opportunity to create a network of trusting, inclusive and productive
partnerships focused on leading improvements in teaching and learning and improving cutcomes. In 2021/22
we are delighted to be a lead detivery partner for ECF and CPD working with the Lincolnshire Teaching School
Hub. We are alsc proud to remain a strategic partner of Lincolnshire SCITT and to be training both primary and
secondary ITT trainees in our area. Providing training and contributing to the regional supply of new ITT and
Early Career Teachers entering the teaching profession is part of our commitment to System Leadership.

Voyage Education Partnership is governed by a Board of Trustees who devolve some responsibilities to the
Standards and Curriculum, Finance and Audit, People and Estates Committee. Each of our academies has an
Academy Council made up of community representatives, parents and staff to provide local and community
accountability.

Our Vision and Ambition for 2020-23

Voyage Education Partnership has four clear and important main aims which encompass our vision and
ambition for 2020-23:

¢«  Every Learner in Voyage is educated in a ‘Good’ academy - where the quality of education reflects the
highest standards and where behaviour, attitudes and outcomes are exemplary and consistent from
everyone within the school community. We want every learner to enjoy their learning journey in our
academies and have real choices for the future. We have a shared mission to deliver excellent
teaching and learning every day.

¢ Voyage is ‘The Trust of parental choice’ — a leading educational organisation in our local communities
that gives parents and communities confidence. We want to he parents first choice’ in the
communities we serve and for our academies to be full or growing, vibrant places to learn. We believe
every learner should have access to the best education whatever their starting point.

9jPage



VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT {continued)

e Vovyage is 'The employer of choice’ — a family of academies and a central team that are great places to
work, We want our staff development to be first class and to enable staff that are ambitious to grow
their careers with us. We want to ensure our CPD networks offer our staff significant professional
development opportunities, and we recruit and retain the very best people.

*  Voyage is ‘The partnership of choice’ — an outward facing, collaborative and innovative learning
focused organisation. We want external agencies and strategic partners to seek to work with us and
for us to have excellent capacity to support others. Our reputation should reflect our strategic aims
and priorities and attract likeminded thinkers and innovators.

Public Benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty to have due regard to the Charity Commission’s
general guidance on public benefit, “Charities and Public Benefit”.

Strategic Report

Achievements and Performance

Despite the continuing challenges presented in the year, all leaders within the Trust were committed to
ensuring that each setting remained safe to be open for quality educational on-site provision as well as to
provide quality remote education in order to continue ta serve the needs of their local community. For those
learners who were not in attendance within the year, whether due to national lockdown orders or through
bubble closures, each academy provided learners with carefully planned remote education provision as well as
supporting the well-being and pastoral needs of learners and their families. Ali academies adopted a blended
approach to suit the individual contextual needs of the learner communities and further adapted to individual
{earners. Headteachers and their teams went to extreme lengths, for example delivering of food parcels,
equipment and learning packs; supporting families with welfare issues, to ensure that engagement in remote
education was successful and that learning continued rather then paused. Headteachers ensured a smooth
transition back into school in March 2021, with the learners displaying great positiveness on their return to
school with leaders swiftly adopting a summer term recovery package of education that was informed by
assessment of need of cohorts and individuals.

The robust system of transition for new pupils in Early Years that was implemented in summer 2020 ensured
learners received a smooth entry into their academy in September 2020. The blended approaches and
strategies adopted were built upon in the Summer term 2021 to ensure that 2021 transition for the new Early
Years learners and their families continued to be welcoming and successful despite the challenges continualty
faced. Transition of pupils into Year 7 during September 2020 had been well supported, with transition
booklets provided for them to experience aspects of the curriculum on offer. This was further developed in
Summer term 2021 for the pending Year 7. Haven High Academy offered a full-experience Summer School to
enhance the transition of these new Year 7 learners using the funding allocated to its full potential to maximise
on a wide offer for provision during the first two weeks of the summer holiday. Y11 students at Haven High
Academy feli a sense of achievement with their TAG results in August 2021. The number of students achieving
5 qualifications including English and Maths was 50%. Students leave Haven High Academy well prepared for
their next phase in their education, channelled by a strong ethos towards Career Education.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee}

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)

Assessment and evaluation of Primary learners by Senior Leaders ensured that Covid Catch Up Grants were
spent on interventions, programmes and initiatives designed to continue learners knowledge journeys and fill
gaps with learning where appropriately identified for individuals. This has enabled learners to enter September
2021 confidently and ready to learn, to work towards age related expectation and statutory assessment for
the end of year 2022.

Ofsted Inspections

There were no inspections during the academic year 2020/21.

Currently, 2 academies are outstanding, 4 good and 2 requires improvement.

Key Financial Performance Indicators

2021 2020

£000 £000
Income {excluding transfer on conversion) 22,347 20,068
Expenses 22,655 21,775
Net income {308} (1,707)
Net income {excluding FRS102 adjustment) 1,070 {330)
Wages % of expenses 77.81% 77.17%
Pupil capacity % 93.69% 92.50%

Key Non Financial Performance Indicators

The following indicators are key to measuring our success:
¢ QOutcomes and progress measures for all learners and all groups of learners
¢ Quality of the curriculum
¢ Qverall pupil attendance rates
¢ Overall fixed term and permanent exclusion rates with an added focus on those eligible for pupil
premium funding and those with special educational needs
s Ofsted judgements covering overall effectiveness, quality of education, behaviour and attitudes,
personal development and leadership and management
» Quicomes of safeguarding, personal development, well being and behaviour reviews
Effective use of the Pupil Premium funding and strategy in order that the disadvantaged gap
continues to close across all outcomes
Feedback from parents, families and our local communities
Adherence to financial probity and financial viability
Number of new schools/academies joining the trust
Number of external agencies and strategic partners linked to the organisation
Academies are full or growing
External and internal audit reports
Operating model ‘fit for purpose’ and value for money
Learning environments and premises are enjoyable places to learn in and work in
Staff retention, recruitment promotion and exit surveys

® @ & » o & @ L
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee}

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the fareseeable future. For this reason it continues
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies note
of the financial statements.

Financial Review

Most of the Academy Trust’s income is cbtained from the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which
is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA during the year ended 31 August 2021
and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the statement of financial activities.

During the year, the Academy Trust received total funding of £22,347,000 compared to total resources expended
of £22,655,000 to give a deficit for the year of £308,000. The Trust made a significant investment into fixed
assets during the year totalling £1,066,000.

Taking into account the brought forwards from 2020, the Academy Trust has £4,438,000 in accumulated revenue
reserves carried forward.

Reserves Palicy

The Academy Trust's 'free' reserves are its funds after excluding restricted funds. 'Reserves' are therefore the
resources the Academy Trust has or can make available to spend for any or all of the Academy Trust's purposes
once it has met its commitments and covered its other planned expenditure. More specifically 'free reserves'
represent income to the Academy Trust which is to be spent at the Trustees' discretion in furtherance of any of
the Trust’s objects but which is not yet spent, committed or designated.

The Trustees review the reserve levels of the Academies with the Academy Trust annually. This review
encompasses the nature of income and expenditure streams. The Trustees have determined that the
appropriate level of free reserves should provide sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending
and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected emergencies such as urgent
maintenance.

The level of restricted funds at the period end, excluding the restricted fixed asset fund; endowment fund and
the pension reserve, amounted to £3,595,000. The Trustees consider an appropriate level of restricted general
reserves to be 10% of each Academy’s GAG income. Based on funding allocations for the 2021/22 academic
year, all but one Academy within the Trust will have exceeded this target. The Trustees recognise the shortfall
and are working to ensure all Academies within the Trust reach this level.

The total value of reserves at 31 August 2021 was £19,588,000 (2020: £21,202,000}, of which £28,529,000 (2020:
£28,012,000) is realisable from the sale of fixed assets.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT {continued)

At the year end the Academy Trust was advised by the actuary to the Local Government Pension Scheme that
the pension liability to fund non-academic staff’s was £12,536,000 in deficit. Of this amount £2,025,000 was
recognised on conversion to an Academy Trust on 1 September 2012. The Academy Trust is making the
appropriate contributions, as advised by the actuary to reduce the deficit.

Investment policy

Voyage Fducation Partnership aims to manage its cash balances to provide for the day-to-day financial
management of the Trust. Where there are sufficient funds to meet all the trust’s financial commitments, and
surplus funds exist, the trust seeks to optimise returns but ensure minimal risk. Where the board of trustees has
agreed an amount to be invested, the Chief Financial Officer is authorised to:
a) transfer funds {for up to six months) to an interest-hearing deposit account with the Trust bankers.
b) invest funds in collaboration with the trust investment advisors.

Invested funds will be reported to the Finance and Audit Committee at the next available meeting, outlining the
maturity date and interest rate achieved. On maturity, the Trust will review the position and re-invest in-line
with the policy. To minimise and limit the risk, the Trust will:
® lInvest in instruments or otherwise that are themselves regulated products and are themselves
regulated and/ or recognised by the FCA or its successor in the UK.
s Adopt a suitably diversified portfolio.
s Invest at least 80% of the investment funds in mainstream markets such as equities, fixed interest
and cash.

The Trust will not directly, deliberately, or purposefully invest in following:
® Any organisation that is directly involved in indiscriminate weaponry.
e Any organisation that produces pornography.

® Any organisation where their principal business activity or focus is tobacco, alcoholic drink or
gambling.

The Academy Trust aims to manage its cash balances to provide for the day-to-day working capital requirements
for its operations.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed. The Trustees are satisfied that
systems and procedures are in place to mitigate the exposure to major risks. $ystems and procedures have
been implemented covering both operational (e.g. in relation to teaching, health and safety, trips, vetting of
new staff, supervision of Trust grounds) and financial risks {comprehensive system of internal contrals
explained in more detail in the Governance Statement}.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT (continued)

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Trust are as follows:

1.

The Trust has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the Education and Skills
Funding Agency. While the current level of funding is expected to continue, there is no assurance that
government policy or practice will remain the same, or that public funding will continue at the same
level or on the same terms.

The Covid 19 global pandemic continues to place high risk and uncertainty to the Trust. The Trustees
recognise the financial, educational and people management challenges now facing the Trust due to
Covid and the need for the Trust to have an agile and flexible response to the extreme challenges
faced on a daily and termly basis.

As the Trust remains highly reliant on Government Funding, the Schools therefore remain highly reliant
on pupii admissions. There exists a risk that one or more schools may not continue to attract sufficient
pupil numbers to support current expenditure, and therefore income and expenditure applied to 3 year
plans continues to be closely monitored.

The success of the Trust is reliant on the quality of its staff, the Trustees monitor and review policies
and procedures to ensure continued development and training of staff, as well as ensuring there s clear
succession planning.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the period 1 September | 1 September
2020 to 31| 2019 to 31
August 2021 August 2020

Energy consumption used to calculate emissions {kWh) 1,842,254 1,584,133

Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Gas consumption 104.47 71.04

Owned transport — mini-buses 3.61 5.12

Total scope 1 108.08 77.16

Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Purchased electricity 264.41 264.11

Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e

Business travel in employee owned vehicles 2.94 9.48

Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 375.43 350.75

Intensity ratio

Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.11 0.11

Quantification and Reporting Methodology:-

* We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the
GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard and have used the 2021 UK Government’s Conversion Factors
for Company Reporting.

Intensity measurement
The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil, the

recommended ratio for the sector.

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency

Implemented procedures for sustainable refurbishment and maintenance of buildings.
Increased video conferencing technology for staff meetings, to reduce the need for travel between
sites.
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(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)

Fundraising

The academy trust does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising undertaken during the year was
monitored by the Trustees.

Plans for Future Periods

Central actions for our MAT in 2021/22 include -

e To develop a whole MAT coaching culture and consistently train leaders to use coaching as a vehicle
for improvement and behaviours.

e To further develop middie leaders to understand leadership, their role, subject intent, and curriculum
design, and how they can be effective as a leader.

» To support all academy leaders in their understanding and accuracy of academy self-evaluation.

» Toimplement and embed a new assessment and data system across all primary academies and
develop a consistent approach through the assessment strategy, from KS1 - KS4.

s To further develop the Voyage Career and Professional Development map and establish the role of
Lead Practitioners.

¢ Tointroduce a more rigorous and transparent Education Framewaork and Quality Assurance process
across all academies with Headteachers and external providers as partners.

e To further strengthen governance and local accountability by recruiting more stakeholders including
community members and parents in the first year of Academy Councils.

e Toincrease the number of Trustees from 8 to 13 and recruit new Trustees based on skill analysis and
need.

» To develop and run a suite of Voyage Leadership Development programmes for leaders across the
organisation.

s Toimplement and embed the Managed HR Service across the Trust to support leaders in developing
the workforce and supporting employees through the employee life cycle.

+ To embed the IT GEN2 Network across the Trust, ensuring all staff and pupils can access a stable and
secure iT infrastructure to support teaching, learning and business operations.

e To develop the Trust's Estate Strategy, focusing on the sustainability of the current estate and the
future needs of the Trust.

¢ Toimplement the Estate Asset Management plan for each Trust site,
To further devetop Catering operations to meet the needs of the Trust's Growth Strategy

e To hegin to develop a Voyage MAT strategy for envirenmental issues and sustainability across the
organisation.

¢ To further develop our role as a System Leader and develop mutually beneficial MAT to MAT partner
working.

s Continue to regularly evaluate and improve the effectiveness of our Central Services to ensure there
is transparency and accountability at all levels.

+ Ensure that Headteachers have transparency of services and are confident they are receiving good
value for money.

¢ Develop further plans and processes for the longer term continued good financial viability of the
organisation.

e Proactively generate more income through bid writing, sourcing additional funding and commercial
opportunities such as lettings.

e |mplement the new Scheme of Delegation to give Headteachers more autonomy and increased
delegation across the organisation with appropriate checks and controls.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES’ REPORT {continued)

Employment of disabled persons

The policy of the Academy Trust is to support recruitment and retention of students and employees with
disabilities. The Academy Trust does this by adapting the physical environment, by making resources available
and through training and career development.

Auditor

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:
e thereis no relevant information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and
¢ the trustees have taken all steps that they cught to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Members of the Board of
Trustees, as the company Directors, on 13 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Chair
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Voyage Education Partnership has
an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absciute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE’s Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees” has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between Voyage Education Partnership and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also
responsible for repeorting to the Board of Trustees’ any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the
Statement of Trustees’ responsibilities. The Board of Trustees’ has formally met six times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the governing body was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
J Barkham 4 4
R Chatterton 4 6
S Hull 4 4
S Johnson 1 1
S Kirk 3 4
1 McGarel 5 6
C Penney 6 6
D Radford 6 6
1 Wrigglesworth 5 6

Staff members from the executive team attended trustee meetings during the year as management by
invitation.

During the year the Trustees continued with reviewing the committee structures, reviewing the subcommittee
members and local Governing Bodies to ensure the appropriate skills are held.

During the 2019 the Trust completed an external review of governance, performed by an NLG. The main points
from the review included:

Clearly defining the role of the members

Ensure the clerk obtains appropriate CPD to enable them to develop a clear and consistent approach
Consider how to improve communication between all levels of governance

Consider how best to monitor and improve the impact of governance through self-evaluation at all
levels of governance.

. & » @
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

The Trust set up a working party, invelving hoth Trustees and Governors to discuss and recommend changes to
governance across the Trust following the review. This body of work was delayed during the year due to the
global pandemic. A consultation was launched during the academic year about the roles and respansibilities of
the Local Governing Bodies, from this a new governance structure was implemented from 1 September 2021.

The Trust is locking to commission a further external review in 2022.
The Finance and Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the Main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to ensure
sound management of the Trust’s finances and resources, including proper planning and application of

resources, monitoring and probity. Attendance at meetings during the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

R Chatterton 4 4
S Coleman {non-Trustee member) 3 4
S Hull 3 4
J McGarei 3 3
C Penney 4 4

The Estates Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Iis purpose is to develop, implement
and monitor the Trust estates strategy, including monitoring the Health and Safety strategy across the Trust.
Attendance at meetings during the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
C Penney 4 4
S Welbourn {non-Trustee member) 4 4
J Wrigglesworth 3 4

The People committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose among those set out in
its Terms of Reference is to monitor MR issues and carry out the performance management process of the CEQ.
Attendance at meetings during the year was as foliows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
J Barkham 2 2
S Kirk 2 2
J McGarel 3 3
D Radford 3 3
1 Wrigglesworth 1 3

The Curriculum and Standards Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to
monitor and advise the Board regarding the performance and standards of the Trust Academies. Attendance at
meetings during the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
J Barkham (non-Trustee member} 3 3
R Chatterton 2 3
] McGarel i 1
C Penney 3 3
D Radford 3 3
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

Review of Value for Money

As Accounting Officer the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust
delivers good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money
refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust’s use of its resources has provided good vaiue for money
during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for meney can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where available. The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has
delivered improved value for moeney during the year by:
* The avoidance of waste and extravagance;
e  Ensuring all financial transactions represent value for money;
e Services and contracts have been appraised and negotiated to get the best mix of quality and
effectiveness for the least cost;
¢ Economies of scale are used by reducing and sharing administration and central costs across the
Academy Trust;
e  Exploring how cash, bank balances and investments are used to maximum effect;
» Staffing levels and structures are regularly reviewed to ensure efficient deployment to support an
improved curricuium for the pupils and students of the Academy Trust;
s  Careful monitoring of additional finance streams intended to support individual pupils and students
{for example those requiring one to one support, pupil premium and gifted and talented);
Receiving regular monitoring reports/health checks from external, independent accountancy audits.

In addition, the Accounting Officer meets termly with the Finance sub-committee to ensure the best possible
educational and wider societal outcomes through the econamic, efficient and effective use of all resources in
the Academy Trust's charge.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absclute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has heen in place in Voyage Education Partnership
for the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by
the Beard of Trustees.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT {continued)

The Risk and Control Framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it inctudes:

comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Finance and Audit Committee;

regular reviews by the Finance and Audit Committee of reports which indicate financial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;
setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided:

to appoint Lincolnshire County Council Audit Services as internal auditor

The internal auditor’s role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Academy Trust's financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period include:

ensuring delegated purchasing authority levels are being adhered to;

testing of payroll systems including, checking approval of new starters and changes to the senior
leadership team contracts;

reviewing the appropriateneass of financial reports;
test checking of control accounts;

review of appropriate board and committee meeting minutes, including oversight of ESFA financial
returns;

review and consideration of any management override issues.

On an annual basis, the internal auditor has reported to the Board of Trustees through the Finance and Audit
Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees’ financial
responsibilities.

The auditor has delivered their schedule of work as planned and has not reported any material control issues as
a result of the work.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee}

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system
of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the internal auditor;

the work of the external auditor;

the school resource management self-assessment tool;

the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Finance and Audit Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous

improvement of the system is in place.

by order of the Members of the Board on 13 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

o — E Hadley

Chair Accounting Officer
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by puarantee)

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of Voyage Education Partnership | have considered my responsibility to notify the
Academy Trust Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in
place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have
had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the Academy Trust’s funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbock 2020.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered

to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees’ Body and ESFA.

E Hadley
Accounting Officer

13 December 2021
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Trustees {who are also the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees” Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual
Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice} and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its inceming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2020 to 2021;

¢ make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants receivad from the ESFA/DE have been applied for
the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guaraniee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Voyage Education Partnership for the year ended 31 August 2021 which
comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by
the Education & Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy's affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

# have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting practice;
and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs {UK}} and applicable law.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial
Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue,

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual report, other than the financial statements and our Auditors' report thereon. Other information includes
the Reference and administrative details, the Trustees' report including the Strategic report, and the Governance
statement. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is 3 material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee)

{INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE BOARD CF TRUSTEES OF VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{continued)

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
+ the information given in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
e the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
reguirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstaternents in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report.
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:
¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or
» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of Trustees' rernuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees' responsibilities statement, the Trustees {who are also the directors of the
Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting untess the Trustees either intend to liguidate the Academy or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are cansidered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of noncompliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

We have identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial experience, knowledge of the sector, a review of regulatory and
legal correspondence and through discussions with Trustees and other management obtained as part of the work
reguired by auditing standards. We have also discussed with the Directors and other management the policies and
procedures relating to compliance with laws and regulations. We communicated laws and regulfations throughout
the team and remained alert to any indications of non-compliance throughout the audit.

25| Page



VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(cantinued}

The potential impact of different laws and regulations varies considerably. Firstly, the company is subject to laws and
regulations that directly impact the financial statements (for example financial reporting legislation) and we have
assessed the extent of compliance with such laws as part of our financial statements audit. This included the
identification and testing of unusual material journal entries and challenging management on key estimates,
assumptions and judgements made in the preparation of the financial statements. These key areas of uncertainty
are disclosed in the accounting policies.

Secondly, the academy is subject to other laws and regulations where the consequence for non-compliance could
have a material effect on the amounts or disclosures in the financial statements. We identified the following areas as
those most likely to have such an effect; Ofsted rating, Health & Safety

Law, HR & minimum wage law, Company Law, compliance with the Funding agreement, compliance with the
Academies Financial Handbook and the completion of DBS checks.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these [aws and regulations
to enquiry of the Trustees and other management and inspection. We have performed audit work through engquiries
with management regarding any non-compliance and reviewed all available information to assess whether any
breaches have been found. Through these procedures, if we became aware of any non-compliance, we considered
the impact on the procedures performed on the related financial statement items.

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. The further removed non-comgpliance with laws and regulations is from the
events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures
reguired by auditing standards would identify it. As with any audit, there is a greater risk of non-detection of
irregularities as these may involve collusion, intentional omissions of the override of internal controls. We are not
responsible for preventing non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and
regulations.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors'
report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its members, as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

N~ ol L.

Timothy Godson FCA (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of

Duncan & Toplis Limited

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

15 Chequergate

Louth

Lincolnshire, LN11 0U pate: 17 December 2021
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO VOYAGE EDUCATION
PARTNERSHIP AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 22 September 2021 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts
Direction 2020 to 2021, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the
expenditure disbursed and income received by Voyage Education Partnership during the year 1 September
2020 to 31 August 2021 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Voyage Education Partnership and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter, Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Voyage Education Partnership
and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Voyage Education
Partnership and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP'S ACCOUNTING OFFICER AND THE
REPCRTING ACCOUNTANT

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Voyage Education Partnership's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 26 July 2012, and the Academies Financial
Handbook extant from 1 September 2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has
come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure
disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied to
purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

APPROACH

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by
EFSA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the Academy Trust's income and expenditure.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO VOYAGE EDUCATION
PARTNERSHIP AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY {continued)

CONCLUSION

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not

been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the
authoerities which govern them.

o
(2 U?OL( Licd
Timothy Godson FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
Duncan & Toplis Limited
15 Chequergate
Louth

Lincolnshire
LN110U

Date: 17 December 2021
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

(incorporating income and expenditure account and statement of total recognised gains and losses)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM:

Donations and capital
grants

Transfer of existing
academies into the trust
Other trading activities
Investment income
Funding for the
Academy Trust's
educational operations
Teaching school income

TOTAL

EXPENDITURE ON:

Raising funds

Academy Trust's
educational operations
Teaching school
operations

TOTAL

NET INCOME /
{(EXPENDITURE)

2|Page

Note

37

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds  fixed asset funds funds

2021 2021 funds 2021 2020
2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

- 18 1,419 1,437 550

30 23 - 53 106

33 - - 33 45

188 20,538 - 20,726 19,230

- 98 - 98 137

251 20,677 1,419 22,347 20,068

- . - . 15

249 21,294 1,007 22,550 21,625

- 105 - 105 135

249 21,399 1,007 22,655 21,775

2 (722) 412 (308) (1,707}



VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (continued)
(Incorporating income and expenditure account and statement of total recognised gains and losses)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Note  Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds fixed asset funds funds
2021 2021 funds 2021 2020
£000 £000 2021 £000 £000
£000
Transfers between funds 23 (36) {113) 149 - -
Other recognised gains/
{fosses):
Actuarial gains / (losses) - {1,569) - (1,569) (460)
on defined benefit
pension schemes
Unrealised gain on 263 - 263 24
revaluation of
investments
NET MOVEMENT IN (34) (2,141) 561 (1,614) (2,143)
FUNDS
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought 888 (6,811) 27,125 21,202 23,345
forward
TOTAIL FUNDS CARRIED
FORWARD 854 (8,952) 27,686 19,588 21,202

All activities relate to continuing operations.
The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 33 to 70 form part of these financial statements.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021

REGISTERED NUMBER: 08158309

FIXED ASSETS
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments

CURRENT ASSETS

Stocks

Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand

CREDITORS: amounts falling due within
one year

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
CREDITORS: amounts falling due after
more than one year

NET ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION
SCHEME LIABILITY

Defined benefit pension scheme liability
Provisions

NET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION
SCHEME LIABILITY

FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY TRUST
Restricted funds:

General Restricted funds
Restricted fixed asset funds
Restricted funds excluding pension
tiabifity

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds

TOTAL FUNDS

The financial statements were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue, on 14 December 2020 and

C Penney
Chair of Trustees
The notes on peges-33-ta
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2021
Note £000
16
17
18
19 2
20 1,593
3,977
5,572
21 (1,946)
22
34
23 3,584
23 27,686
31,270
{12,536}
23

E Hadley

2020
£000 £000 £000
26,631 26,405
1,898 1,607
28,529

28,012

2

1,526

2,996

4,524

(1,726)
3,626 2,798
32,155 30,810
(3) (19}
32,152 30,791
(12,536) (9,589)
(28} -
19,588 21,202

2,778

27,125

29,903

(9,589)
20,314
854 888
19,588 21,202

= Had -

Chief Executive Officer and Accounting Officer
af these financial statements.



VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FCR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Cash balances inherited on transfer of academies into
the trust

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reperting
period

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 2020

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2021

The notes on pages 33 to 70 form part of these financial statements.
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Note

27

28

29

31

Year Year

31 August 31 August
2021 2020
£000 £000

598 149

406 429

(16) {15)

988 563

3,011 2,448
3,999 3,011




VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland {FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland {FRS
102) (Charities SORP {FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Voyage Education Partnership meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.
The financial statements are presented in British pounds and rounded to the nearest thousand.
1.2 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received and include grants from the
Department for Education,

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.

1.3 Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, i.e, whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of one year from the date of approval of the financial statements and have concluded that the
Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust’s ability to continue as a going
concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
1.4 Incoming rescurces

All incoming resources are included in the Statement of financial activities when the Academy Trust
has entitlement to the funds, certainty of receipt and the amount can be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of entitlement of receipt, its
recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income. Where entitlement occurs
before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the year for which it is receivable and any unspent
amount is reflected as a balance in the restricted general fund.

Capital grants are recognised when receivable and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which
they are expended. Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the restricted
fixed asset fund.

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
Statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable, where there is certainty of
receipt and it is measurable,

The value of donated services and gifts in kind provided to the Academy Trust are recognised at their
open market value in the period in which they are receivable as incoming resources, where the
benefit to the Academy Trust can be reliably measured. An equivalent amount is included as
expenditure under the relevant heading in the Statement of financial activities, except where the gift
in kind was a fixed asset in which case the amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category
and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the Academy Trust's policies,

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where there is certainty of receipt and the amount can
be reliably measured.

Income tax recoverable in relation to donations received under Gift Aid or deeds of covenant is
recognised at the time of the donation.

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period in which it is receivable and to
the extent the goods have been provided or on completion of the service.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1.5 Resources expended
Expenditure is recognised in the period in which a liability is incurred and has been classified under
headings that aggregate all costs related to that category. Where costs cannot be directly attributed
to particular headings they have been allocated on a basis consistent with the use of resources, with
central staff costs allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the

portion of the asset's use. Other support costs are allocated based on the spread of staff costs.

Costs of generating funds are costs incurred in attracting voluntary income, and those incurred in
trading activities that raise funds.

Charitable activities are costs incurred in the Academy Trust's educational operations.

Redundancy or termination payments are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure that
would be required to settle the obligation at the reporting date.

Governance costs include the costs attributable to the Academy Trust's compliance with
constitutional and statutory requirements, including audit, strategic management and Trustees'
meetings and reimbursed expenses.
Al resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

1.6 Intangible fixed assets
intangible assets costing more that £10,000 are capitalised and recognised when future economic
benefits are probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably. intangible assets
are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at cost net of amortisation and any
provision for impairment. Amortisation is provided on intangible fixed assets at rates calculated to
write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:
Computer software - 33% straight line

1.7 Invesiments

Investments have been classified as fixed assets where it is the intention to retain them for more than
one year. They are included in the balance sheet at market value.

All realised and unrealised gains and losses have been included in the statement of financial activities.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
1.8 Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Alf assets costing more than £10,000 are capitalised.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. The related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and are carried forward in the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful economic life of the related asset on a basis
consistent with the Academy Trust's depreciation policy. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impatrment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Actlivities.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use. Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation
is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value,
over their expected useful lives on the following bases:

Freehold property - 2% straight line
Long Leasehoeld property - Over the remaining life of the lease
Motor vehicles - 25% straight line
Fixtures and fittings - 25% straight line
Computer equipment -~ 10% and 33% straight line
Building refurbishments - 10% straight line
1.9 Stock

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable vaiue after making due allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving stocks. Cost includes alf direct costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed
and variable overheads.

1.10 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short term highly liguid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition ar opening of the deposit or similar account.

1.11 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
1.12 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the
amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount the
Academy Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced
payments for the goods or services it must provide.

1.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result
of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

1.14 Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes. Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or
capital gains received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010
or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

1.15Financial Instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets
and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets — trade and other debters are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 20. Prepayments are not financial instruments,

Cash at bank — is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial ligbiiities — trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 21 and 22. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
1.16 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
{"TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes and
the assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of

pensions aver employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is
a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quinguennial valuations using a prospective
benefit method. As stated in note 34, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and the Academy Trust is
unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and
reasonable basis. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme and the contributions
recognised as they are paid each year.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust in
separate Trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method and discounted at a rate equivalent
to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the
liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each Balance
Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and gains and losses
on settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs. Past service costs are
recognised immediately in the Statement of Financial Activities if the benefits have vested. If the
benefits have not vested immediately, the costs are recognised over the pericd until vesting occurs.
The expected return on assets and the interest cost are shown as a net finance amount of other finance
costs or credits adjacent to interest. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other
gains and losses.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1.17 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below,

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost {income) for pensions Include the discount rate. Any
change in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 34, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects resulis from the latest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pension
liability at 31 August 2021. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward
approach ad a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

1.18 Transfer on conversion
The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the

appropriate headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of
Financial Activities.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FCR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

2. DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Donations - 18 18 21
Donated fixed assets = - - _
Capital grants - 1,419 1,419 529
Other voluntary income - - - -
Voluntary income - 1,437 1,437 550
3. OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Lettings income 15 - 15 16
Catering income - - - 17
Sale of goods 12 - 12 i1
Receipts from supply teacher insurance claims - 23 23 59
Other income 3 - 3 3
30 23 53 106

4. EXPENDITURE ON RAISING FUNDS
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Other expenses - - - 10
Wages and salaries - - - 5
- - - 15
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

5. INCOMING RESOURCES FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Funding for the Academy Trust’s educational 188 20,538 20,726 18,230
operations
FUNDING FOR ACADEMY TRUST'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
DFE/ESFA Revenue grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 16,685 16,685 15,870
Pupil Premium - 1,044 1,044 1,045
Teachers Pension Grant - 535 535 517
UIFSM - 269 269 280
Other DfE/ESFA Revenue grants - 434 434 392
- 18,967 18,967 18,114
Other Government grants
SEN 1-1 Funding - 787 787 517
Other Local Authority revenue grants - 353 353 216
Other government grants - 11 11 3
Other income
Non-government grants - 16 16 41
Catering income 157 - 157 147
Other income 31 48 79 131
COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA)
Catch-up premium - 288 288 -
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding - 68 o8 61
188 20,538 20,726 19,230

Voyage Education Partnership received £288,000 of funding for catch-up premium and £68,000 of other

COVID-19 funding. Costs incurred in respect of this funding totalied £274,000, with the remaining £82,000 to

be spent in 2021/22.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

6. EXPENDITURE

Staff costs Premises  Other costs Total Total
2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Expenditure on raising funds - - - - 15
Academy Trust’s educational
operations:
Direct costs 14,571 585 1,611 16,767 16,576
Allocated support costs 2,972 1,743 1,068 5,783 5,049
17,543 2,328 2,679 22,550 21,625
Teaching school operations:
Direct costs 69 - 20 89 117
Allocated support costs 15 - 1 16 18
84 - 21 105 135
17,627 2,328 2,700 22,655 21,775

Net income/ (expenditure) for the period includes:

2021 2020

£000 £000
Auditors’ remuneration — audit services 14 17
Auditors’ remuneration — other services 4 4
Internal auditors’ remuneration 2 3
Operating leases — plant and machinery 49 22
Operating leases — other leases 9 g
Depreciation 840 929
Amartisation - -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of fixed assets {41} 11

Included within expenditure are the fallowing transactions:

Total £ individual items above £5,000

Amount £ Reason
Gifts made by the academy trust 300 n/fa n/a
Unrecoverable debts 1,605 n/a n/a
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

7. DIRECT COSTS

Teaching and educational support

staff costs
Educational supplies
Technotogy costs
Examination fees
Staff devetopment
Other costs
Depreciation

8. SUPPORT COSTS

Suppoert staff costs
Recruitment and suppart
Premise costs

Catering

Other costs

Pension income

Legal costs

Technology costs
Governance

(Gain}/loss on disposal

43 |[Page

Teaching  Educational Total Total
school Operations 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
69 14,571 14,640 14,393

- 521 521 632

- 457 457 353

- 102 102 114

20 a0 110 109

- 186 186 163

- 840 840 929

89 16,767 16,856 16,693
Teaching Educational Total Total
school Operations 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
15 2,972 2,987 2,406

- 48 48 55

- 1,743 1,743 1,661

- 474 474 347

1 214 215 245

- 155 155 159

- 11 11 21

- 181 181 133

- 26 26 29

- {41) (a1) 11

16 5,783 5,799 5,067




VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

9. ANALYSIS OF RESOURCES EXPENDED BY ACTIVITIES

Academy Trust’s educational operations

Teaching school operations

10. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM:

Donations and capital grants
Transfer of existing academies into
the trust

Other trading activities

Investment income

Funding for the Academy Trust's
educational operations

Teaching school income

TOTAL

EXPENDITURE ON:
Raising funds

Academy Trust's
educational operations

Teaching school operations

TOTAL
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Activities
Undertaken Supnort Total Total
directly Costs funds Sfunds
2021 2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
16,767 5,782 22,550 21,625
89 16 105 135
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
funds funds fixed asset funds
2020 2020 funds 2020
2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
- 21 529 550
45 6l - 106
45 - - 45
221 19,019 - 19,230
- 137 - 137
301 19,238 529 20,068
15 - - 15
627 19,986 1,012 21,625
- 135 - 135
642 20,121 1,012 21,775




VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

11. STAFF

a. Staff costs

Staff costs were as follows: Year Year
31 August 31 August

2021 2020

£000 £000

Wages and salaries 12,103 11,491
Social security costs 1,115 1,034
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes (Note 34) 3,839 3,682
Apprenticeship levy 45 43

Recovery of staff costs for employees seconded out of the - -
organisation

17,102 16,250
Supply staff costs 368 550
Staff restructuring costs i57 4
17,627 16,804

Staff restructure costs comprise:
Redundancy payments 100 -
Severance payments 57 4
Other restructure costs - -
157 4

b. Non statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments

included within staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling
£57,089 (2020: £477). Individually, the payments were £40,000, £15,000, and £2,089.
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

11. STAFF {continued)

c¢. Staff numbers

The average number of persans employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

Year Year
31 August 31 August
2021 2020
No. No.
Teaching staff 184 182
Admin and support staff 271 262
Management 10 11
465 455
d. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose emoluments fell within the following bands was:
Year Year
31 August 31 August
2021 2020
No No

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 5 7
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 5 2
In the band £80,001 - £90,000 - 2
In the band £90,001 - £100,000 1 1
in the band £130,001 - £140,000 1 -

12 12

12 (2020: 12} of the above employees participated in a pension scheme. During the year ended 31 August
2021 employer's pension contributions for these staff amounted to £197,531 {2020: £196,263).

e. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprises of the trustees and the sentor management
team as listed on page 2. The total amount of employee benefits {including employer pension contributions})
received by key management persannel for their services to the Academy Trust was £1,182,447 (2020:
£954,755).
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

12. CENTRAL SERVICES
The Academy Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

e  Executive leadership support
® Human Resources

e  Financial Services

s Marketing and public relations
e  Others as arising

The Academy Trust charges for these services at 5% of General Annual Grant. The actual amounts charged
during the year were as follows:

2021 2020

£000 £000
Haven High Academy 354 317
Carlton Road Academy 92 94
Staniland Academy 118 115
Wygate Park Academy 47 42
Park Academy 92 97
Boston Pioneers Free School 83 81
Fishtoft Academy 16 16
Gosberton Academy 23 27
Total 830 789
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

13. TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES
No Trustee has been paid remuneration or received cther benefits from employment with the Academy Trust.
During the year ended 31 August 2021, expenses totalling £nil (2020 - £624) were reimbursed to nil Trustees
{2020 - 1).

14. TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE
The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy trust

business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. it is not pessible to quantify the trustees’ and officers”
indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.

15. OTHER FINANCE INCOME

Year Year

31 August 31 Auguist

2021 2020

£0600 £000

Interest income on plan assets 152 191
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (307) {350}
(155) {159)

48 |Page



VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

16. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost

At 1 September 2020
Additions

Donation of assets
Disposals

At 31 August 2021
Amortisation

At 1 September 2020
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 August 2021

Net book value
At 31 August 2021

At 31 August 2020
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Computer Total
software

£000 £000

27 27

27 27

27 27

27 27




VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FEINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

17. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost

At 1 September 2020
Additions
Reclassification
Disposals

At 31 August 2021

Depreciation

At 1 September 2020
Charge for the year
Reclassification
Disposals

At 31 August 2021

Net book value
At 31 August 2021

At 31 August 2020

Cost

At 1 September 2020
Additions
Reclassification
Disposals

At 31 August 2021

Depreciation

At 1 September 2020
Charge for the year
Reclassification
Disposals

At 31 August 2021

Net book value
At 31 August 2021

At 31 August 2020
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Long Freehold Fixtures Computer

Leasehold land and and Equipment
Property buildings fittings

£000 £000 £000 £000

21,229 8,262 1,794 1,544

836 - 31 45

- - - {50)

22,065 8,262 1,825 1,539

3,672 - 1,349 1,439

585 - 203 35

- - - (50)

4,257 - 1,552 1,424

17,808 8,262 273 115

17,557 8,262 445 105

Motor Vehicles Assets Under Total

Construction

£000 £000 £000

137 - 32,966

i1 143 1,066

- - (50)

148 143 33,982

101 - 6,561

17 - 840

- - {50)

118 - 7,351

30 143 26,631

36 - 26,405




VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

17. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (continued)

Additions to long leasehold land and buildings do not include any new leases taken on by the Academy Trust in
the year.

Included within long leasehold property is leasehold land of £1,712,000 which is not depreciated.

18. INVESTMENTS

Total
£000
At 1 September 2020 1,607
Additions 228
Disposals (200}
Revaluation 263
At 31 August 2021 1,898
The academy trust held the following investments in excess of 5% of the total portfolio:
£104,392 — Vanguard Funds PLC
£106,782 ~ Scot Mort inv TST
2021 2020
£000 £000
Historical cost 1,506 1,478
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VOYAGE EDUCATION PARTNERSHIP
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

19. STOCKS

2021 2020
£000 £000
Clothing - -
Catering goods - -
Other 2 2
2 2

20. DEBTORS
2021 2020
£000 £000
Trade debtors 16 21
VAT recoverable 118 111
Other debtors 800 973
Prepayments and accrued income 659 421
1,593 1,526
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21. CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year

2021 2020
£000 £000
Other loans 15 15
Trade Creditors 264 307
Other taxation and social security 273 255
Other creditors 315 327
Accruals and deferred income 1,079 822
1,946 1,726

Deferred income as at 31 August 2021 includes the following grant and non-grant income that relates to the
year ended 31 August 2022;

£000

ESFA Universal Infant Free School Meal income 157

ESFA Rates funding 49

Lettings income 5

Local authority income 195

Other 16
Deferred income

2021

£000

Deferred income at 1 September 2020 295

Resources deferred during the year 318

Amounts released from previous year (191)

Deferred income at 31 August 2021 422

22. CREDITORS: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2021 2020

£000 £000

Other loans 3 19

included in other loans falling due after more than one year is £2,936 due to the ESFA in respect of loans relating
o Condition Improvement Funds. The loans are interest-free and are due for repayment by September 2023.

Also included within other creditors falling due after more than one year is £nil in respect of a loan from
Lincolnshire County Council. Interest is charged at 2.2%, and the loan is due for repayment by February 2023.

included in other loans above is £nil which is due for repayment after more than five years from the balance
sheet date.
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23. STATEMENT OF FUNDS

Balance at 1 Incoming Resources Transfers Gains/ Balance at
September Resources Expended infout (Losses) 31 August
2020 £000 £000 £000 £000 2021
£000 £000
Unrestricted
Funds
Other income not for ‘
capital purposes 388 251 (249) (36) - 854
Restricted funds
General Annual Grant
{GAG) 2,424 16,685 (16,083) {101) 263 3,188
Other DFE/ESFA
Grants 260 2,678 {2,786) (12) - 140
Gavernment grants 2 1,151 {1,065} - - 88
Other restricted income 92 163 (87) “ - 168
Pension reserve {9,589) - (1,378) - {1,569) {12,536)
(6,811) 20,677 {21,399) {113) (1,306) {8,952)
Restricted fixed asset funds
DfE/ESFA capital grants 1,136 654 {208) - - 1,582
Capital expenditure from
GAG 2,794 - (398} 137 - 2,533
Capital expenditure from
other income 15,679 765 (355) 12 - 16,101
Transfer of existing 7,516 . {46) - - 7,470
academies into the trust
27,125 1,419 {1,007) 149 - 27,686
Total restricted funds 20,314 22,096 {22,406) 36 (1,306) 18,734
Total of funds 21,202 22,347 {22,655) - (1,306) 19,588
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23. STATEMENT OF FUNDS {continued}
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:
General Annual Grant {GAG) must be used for the normal running costs of the Academy Trust.

Other DFE / ESFA Grants comprise of various grants awarded for specific projects, in particular to boost
standards of attainment. Grants include Pupit Premium funding which is intended to support education from
pupils from a disadvantaged background.

Local Government Grants includes funding provided for pupils with Statements of Special Educational Needs
and is used by the Academy Trust to assist with the pupils education.

Devolved capital funding is that provided to academies to use as it sees fit in areas such as improvements to
buildings or facilities, or the repair or refurbishment of such.

Other capital grants are provided to the Academy Trust based on specific bids for individual projects.

Other income comprises various other receipts including school meals. The income is classed as restricted or
unrestricted based on the nature of the income.

The pension reserve arises from the actuarial measurement of the Academy Trust's share of the Local
Government Pension Scheme deficit. This deficit is recorded as a provision. The actuarial cost of employing
staff during the year is initially reflected in the normal running costs of the school in the restricted pension
fund. The amount included in resources expended represents the pension cost for the year charged to income
and expenditure that arises from actuarial calculations of service cost rather than employer contributions paid,
and amounts to £1,378,000. Actuarial gains and losses that arise from changes in assumptions by the actuary
or wider influences are shown in the restricted pension fund, the movement this year being a net £1,569,000
actuarial increase in the net pension fund deficit.

Restricied fixed asset funds represent monies received in respect of and spent on fixed assets. This includes
assets inherited on conversion. The tota! of resources expended within this fund includes the depreciation

charge for the year. The transfers figure is the amount of other funds used to acquire fixed assets.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2021.
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23. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)
Analysis of Academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 were allocated as follows:

Total Total

2021 2020

£000 £000
Haven High Academy 556 415
Carlton Road Academy 722 727
Staniland Academy 783 752
Wygate Park Academy 396 254
Park Academy 731 561
Boston Pioneers Free School 218 87
Fishtoft Academy 132 105
Gosberton Academy 135 64
Investment revaluation 392 129
Voyage Education Partnership 373 572
Total before fixed asset fund and pension reserve 4,438 3,666
Restricted fixed asset fund 27,686 27,125
Pension reserve {12,536) (9,589)
Total 19,588 21,202
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23. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

Analysis of Academies by cost

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Haven High Academy
Carlton Road Academy
Staniland Academy

Wygate Park Academy

Park Academy

Boston Pioneers Free School
Fishtoft Academy
Gosberton Academy
Voyage Education Partnership
FRS102 adjustments
Depreciation

Comparative infarmation in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Haven High Academy
Carfton Road Academy
Staniland Academy

Wygate Park Academy

Park Academy

Boston Pioneers Free School
Fishtoft Academy
Gosherton Academy
Voyage Education Partnership
FRS102 adjustments
Depreciation
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Teaching and

educational Other

support staff support Educational

costs staff costs supplies  Other costs Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

5,395 522 221 1,648 7,786

1,534 83 67 364 2,048

1,999 91 53 379 2,522

758 81 41 149 1,029

1,286 89 56 301 1,732

1,265 104 41 364 1,774

225 38 6 71 340

457 41 27 77 602

1,010 1,431 9 195 2,645

711 507 - 160 1,378

- - 799 799

14,640 2,987 521 4,507 22,655

Teaching and
educational Other

support staff support Educational

costs staff costs supplies  Other costs Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

5,066 489 250 1,428 7,233

1,505 92 68 238 1,903

1,919 112 79 279 2,389

694 76 50 130 950

1,330 84 78 226 1,718

1,246 122 67 281 1,716

213 28 13 54 308

422 39 29 25 585

1,059 1,090 {3) 521 2,667

732 486 - 159 1,377

- - 929 929

14,186 2,618 631 4,340 21,775
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23. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balanceat 1 Incoming Resources Transfers Gains/ Balance at
September Resources Expended In/out (Losses) 31 August
2019 £000 £000 £000 £000 2020
£000 £000
Unrestricted
Funds
Other income not for
capital purposes 731 301 (642) 498 - 888
Restricted funds
General Annual Grant
(GAG) 2,618 15,870 (15,779) (309) 24 2,424
Other DfE/ESFA
Grants 139 2,442 (2,020) (301) - 260
Government grants 23 736 (757) - - 2
Other restricted income 90 190 (188) - - 92
Pension reserve (7,752) - (1,377) - (460) (9,589)
(4,882) 19,238 (20,121) (610) (436) (6,811)

Restricted fixed asset funds

DfE/ESFA capital grants 721 529 (114) - - 1,136
Capital expenditure from
GAG 3,175 - (488) 107 - 2,794
Capital expenditure from
other income 16,037 - (363) 5 - 15,679
Transfer of existing 7,563 = (47) - - 7,516

academies into the trust

27,496 529 (1,012) 112 - 27,125
Total restricted funds 22,614 19,767 (21,133) - (436) 20,314
Total of funds 23,345 20,068 (21,775) - (436) 21,202
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24. ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

Fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors due within

one year

Creditors due within more than
one year

Provisions for liabilities and
charges

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors due within

one year

Creditors due within more than
one year

Provisions for liabilities and
charges
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Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds  Total funds funds
2021 2021 2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
- 1,898 26,631 28,529 28,012
854 3,663 1,055 5,572 4,524
- (1,946) - (1,946) (1,726)
- (3) - (3) (19)
- (12,564) - (12,564) (9,589)
854 (8,952) 27,686 19,588 21,202
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset
funds funds funds Total funds
2020 2020 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
- 1,607 26,405 28,012
888 2,916 720 4,524
- (1,726) - (1,726)
= (19) - (19)
- (9,589) - (9,589)
888 (6,811) 27,125 21,202
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

25. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 August 2021 the Academy Trust had capital commitments as follows:

2021 2020
£000 £000
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements 183 7

26. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 August 2021 the total of the Academy Trust’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases as follows:

Land and buildings Other
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Expiry Date:
Within 1 year 9 9 54 34
Between 2 and 5 years 35 35 102 111
After more than 5 years 966 974 B -
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27. NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Year
31 August Year 31
2021  August 2020
£000 £000
Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as (308) (1,707)
per the statement of financial activities)
Adjusted for:
Interest received (33) (45)
Assets and liabilities inherited - -
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 840 929
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets - -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of fixed assets (41) -
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (1,419) (529)
(Increase) / decrease in stocks - 6
(Increase) / decrease in debtors (67) (45)
Increase / (decrease) in creditors 248 163
Defined benefit pension liability inherited - -
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 160 159
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less 1,218 1,218
contributions paid
Net cash provided by / (used in) Operating Activities 598 149
28. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Year
31 August Year 31
2021 August 2020
£000 £000
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 33 45
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (1,066) (166)
Purchase of investments (228) (325)
Capital grants from DfE/ ESFA 1,419 529
Capital funding received from sponsors and others - -
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets - -
Proceeds from sale of investments 248 346
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities 406 429
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29. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Year
31 August Year 31
2021 August 2020
£000 £000
Repayments of borrowing (16) (15)
Cash inflows from new borrowing - -
(16) (15)
30. ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT
At1l Cash flows Acquisition New Other non At 31
September / disposal of finance —cash August
2020 subsidiaries leases changes 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash 2,996 981 - - - 3,977
Cash equivalents 15 7 - - - 22
Overdraft facility - - - - - -
repayable on demand
3,011 988 - - - 3,999
Loans falling due (15) - - - - (15)
within one year
Loans falling due after (19) 16 - - - (3)
more than one year
Finance lease - - - - - -
obligation
2,977 1,004 B - - 3,981
31. ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
At 31 At 31
August 31 August
2021 2020
£000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 3,977 2,996
Cash held as investment 22 15
Total cash and cash equivalents 3,999 3,011
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the period of the Funding Agreement, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any asset
for which a Government capital grant was received, the Academy Trust is required either to re-invest the
proceeds or to repay to the Secretary of State for Education and Skills the same proportion of the proceeds of
the sale or disposal as equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State.

Upon termination of the Funding Agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the Academy
Trust serving notice, the Academy Trust shall repay to the Secretary of State sums determined by reference to:

(a) the value at that time of the Academy Trust's site and premises and other assets held for the purpose of the
Academy Trust: and

(b) the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the Secretary
of State under the Funding Agreement.

At the year end the company was investigating several issues with the construction of one of its buildings. At
this point it is not possible to quantity the value of the remedial works and so no provision is included within
the financial statements.

33. MEMBERS LIABILITY
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of
it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such

amounts as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases
to be a member.
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34. PENSION COMMITMENTS

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teacher's Pension Scheme for
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching staff, which is managed by West Yorkshire Pension Fund. Both are multi-employer defined
benefit schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The latest
actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2019.

Contributions amounting to £292,949 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2021 (2020 - £309,555) and
are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme
Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies. All
teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many
other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation
report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation
and subsequent consultation are:

® Employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)

e total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

e the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE
rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in
excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate
of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £1,730,832 (2020: £1,666,749).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.
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34. PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

Under the definitions set out in Financial Reporting Standard 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer
pension scheme. The academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined
contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with assets held in separate Trustee-administered funds. The
total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2021 was £1,166,196 (2020: £1,043,920), of which
employer's contributions totalled £890,327 (2020: £796,856) and employees' contributions totalled £275,869
(2020: £247,064). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 19.4% for employers and between 5.5%
and 12.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event
of Academy Trust closure, outstanding local government pension scheme liabilities would be met by the

Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

The Principal actuarial assumptions at the Balance sheet date:

2021 2020
Rate of increase in salaries 3.15% 2.5%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.85% 2.2%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.70 % 1.7%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2021 2020
Retiring today
Males 21.2 21.4
Females 23.6 23.7
Retiring in 20 years
Males 22.0 22.4
Females 25:1 252
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34. PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

The Academy Trust's share of the assets and liabilities in the scheme and the expected rates of return were:

Fair value at 31

Fair value at 31

August 2020 August 200

£000 £000

Equities 8,126 5,790

Bonds 1,612 1,678

Property 1,172 839

Cash 431 85

Total market value of assets 11,341 8,392

Present value of scheme liabilities (23,877) (17,981)

(Deficit)/surplus in the scheme (12,536) (9,589)

The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Year Year

31 August 31 August

2021 2020

£000 £000

Present value of funded obligations (23,877) (17,981)

Fair value of scheme assets 11,341 8,392

Net liability (12,536) (9,589)

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities are as follows:

Year Year

31 August 31 August

2020 2020

£000 £000

Current service cost 2,108 2,016

Net interest cost 155 159

Administration expenses 5 -

Benefit changes, gains/(losses) on curtailments and gain/(loss) on - -
settlements

Total operating charge 2,268 2,175

Return on scheme assets 1,711 (2,301)
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34. PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:

Year Year
31 August 31 August
2021 2020
£000 £000
Opening defined benefit obligation 17,981 17,355
Transfer in on existing academies joining the trust - -
Current service cost 2,108 2,016
Interest cost 307 350
Past service cost & &
Contributions by employees 276 247
Actuarial (gain)/ losses 3,280 (1,841)
Benefits paid (75) (146)
Closing defined benefit obligation 23,877 17,981
Movements in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets:
Year Year
31 August 31 August
2021 2020
£000 £000
Opening fair value of scheme assets 8,392 9,603
Transfer in on existing academies joining the trust - -
Interest income 152 191
Administration expenses (5) -
Actuarial gain/ (losses) 1,711 (2,301)
Contributions by employer 890 798
Contributions by employees 276 247
Benefits paid (75) (146)
11,341 8,392
The Academy Trust expects to contribute £929,000 to its Defined benefit pension scheme during the 2022
financial year.
The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows:
2021 2020
Equities 72.00 % 69.00 %
Bonds 14.00 % 20.00 %
Property 10.00 % 10.00 %
Cash 4.00 % 1.00 %
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34. PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

Amounts for the current and previous period are as follows:

Defined benefit pension schemes

Defined benefit obligation

Scheme assets

Deficit

Experience Gains/ (Losses) on scheme
liabilities

Experience Gains/ (Losses) on scheme assets

Sensitivity analysis:
Change in assumptions

0.1% increase in Real Discount Rate

0.1% decrease in Real Discount Rate

Mortality rate 1 year increase

Mortality rate 1 year decrease

0.1% increase in the Pension Increase Rate (CPI)
0.1% decrease in the Pension Increase Rate (CPI)

0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate
0.5% increase in the Salary Increase Rate
0.5% increase in the Pension Increase Rate (CPI)
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2021
£000
23,877
11,341
(12,536)
(3,280)

1,711

2020
£000
17,981
8,392
(9,589)
1,841

(2,301)

2019
£000
17,355
9,603
(7,752)
(3,143)

285

£000
2021

(716)
739
(987)
1,030
641
(621)

2020
2,731

210
2,478

2018
£000
12,301
8,227
(4,074)
(1,471)

392

2017
£000
11,919
6,887
(5,032)
(1,321)
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust's operations and the composition of the Board of Trustees being
drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which a trustees has an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance
with the requirements of the Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1
April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust’s financial regulations and
normal procurement procedures relating to connected and relate party transactions. The following related
party transactions took place during the financial period.

E McGarel, daughter of J McGarel, a Trustee, is employed by the Academy Trust as a teacher. E McGarel’s
appointment was made in open competition and J McGarel was not involved in the decision making process
regarding appointment. E McGarel is paid within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no special
treatment as a result of her relationship to a Trustee.

In recognition of long service, gifts totalling £76 were purchase for 2 trustees during the year.

CJ & CA Penney Consulting Ltd — a company in which Mr C Penney (a trustee) has a majority interest:
® The academy trust purchased PPE from CJ & CA Penney Consulting Ltd totalling £nil (2020: £3,224)
during the period. There were no amounts outstanding at 31 August 2021 (2020: £nil)
® Inentering into the transaction, the academy trust complied with the requirements of the Academies
Financial Handbook

® The purchase has been provided ‘at no more than cost’ and CJ & CA Penney Consulting Ltd has
provided a statement of assurance confirming this.

36. CONTROLLING PARTY

The Trustees have ultimate control of the Academy Trust.
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37. TEACHING SCHOOL TRADING ACCOUNT

31 August 2021 31 August 2020
£000 £000
Income
- Direct income 98 153
- Otherincome - -
Total income 98 153
Direct costs
- Staff costs 69 111
- Educational supplies - 5
- Training costs 20 17
- Other direct costs - -
Total direct costs 89 133
Other costs
- Staff costs 15 18
- Other support costs ] 6
- Rent 12 12
Total other costs 28 36
Total expenditure 117 169
Surplus/(Deficit) from all sources (19) (16)
Teaching school balances at 1 September 81 97
Teaching school balances at 31 August 62 81

38. CHANGE OF NAME

With effect from 27 April 2021, the name of the Academy Trust was changed from The Boston Witham

Academies Federation to Voyage Education Partnership.
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